
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

July 10, 2017–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the June 6, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for June 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for July 2017.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioner (BCC) for adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land
Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2017-03.

 

B.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, a Small Scale Map Amendment,
SSA-2017-01, amending Part II of the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as amended;
amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map designation.



amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map designation.
 

C.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-02

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, a Small Scale Map Amendment, SSA
2017-02, amending Part II of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as amended; amending the Future
Land Use (FLU) Map designation.

 

D.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter
2, Section 2-5.7, Final Plats

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Section 2-5.7, Final Plats.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
August 1, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 07/10/2017  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the June 6, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for June 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for July 2017.

Attachments
Draft June 6, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



DRAFT
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 June 6, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:58 A.M. – 11:19 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Edwin Howard   
  Patty Hightower   
  William Clay   
  Stephen Opalenik   
Absent: Timothy Pyle
  Eric Fears
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Griffin Vickery, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Administrative Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by William Clay 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 



 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the May 2, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for May 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for June 2017.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the May 2, 2017,
Regular Planning Board meeting. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the Regular Planning Board meeting packet
for June 6, 2017. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC
Chapter 4 Regarding Dog-friendly Outdoor Dining

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption an Ordinance amending the Land
Development Code (LDC), Chapter 4, to establish provisions for authorizing
public food service establishments to offer outdoor areas for dog-friendly
dining as an accessory use to those establishments.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to recommend approval and move forward with small
grammatical changes. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 



 
Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

B.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 4, Article 5, Section 4-5.4, Threatened and Endangered Species
Habitat

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 4, Article 5, Section 4-5.4 Threatened and endangered
species habitat, to modify assessment for Perdido Key beach mouse.

  

 
  Motion by Edwin Howard, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend approval and forward to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

A.     Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan
Annual Report 2015/2016

That the Board review and recommend approval to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) the 2015/2016 Comprehensive Plan Annual Report.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Edwin Howard 

Motion was made to capitalize the word "Navy" on page 5, and forward
to the BCC. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

B.     Spot Zoning/Rezoning Discussion.

The Board, Staff, and members of the public discussed this item. Director
will take the item before the BCC Committee of the Whole for further
direction.

  

 

C.     Zoning/FLU Inconsistencies.

The Board, Staff, and members of the public discussed this item. Staff will
write a new version and bring back for more discussion.

  



 

D.     Clustering Discussion.

The Board, Staff, and members of the public discussed this item. More
discussion will be held at the August PB meeting. 

  

 

8.  Public Forum.
 

9.  Director's Review.
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, July
11, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office Complex,
Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

The Board discussed changing the next Planning Board meeting to
Monday, July 10, 2017, since the agenda for next month will be large.
Please check the website for any changes or updates to the meeting
schedule.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



1 

 

 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2017 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for June 2017 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
June. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition has 
not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report 
preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on 
the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
Comp Plan Annual Report 
 06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
 07-06-17 BCC meeting 
 

• Text Amendments: 

 

• Map Amendments: 

 
 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
Dog Friendly Dining Ord 
06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
07-06-17 BCC meeting 
 
Beach Mouse Assessment Ord 
06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
07-06-17 BCC meeting 
 
Residential Uses in Zoning Districts 
09-6-16 PB recommended more review by staff 
  On hold – waiting for input from County Attorney’s Office 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 

PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 

www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

 
OSP-2017-01 (formerly 2016-01) 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC wanted to reschedule for DEO to be in attendance to meeting 
03-07-17 PB recommended approval 
03-16-17 BCC transmitted to DEO 
 
Spot Zoning 
12-06-16 PB dropped item and wanted more discussion 
 
 
REZONING CASES 
 
1.     Rezoning Case Z-2017-05 

06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
07-06-17 BCC meeting 

 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JULY 2017 

(Revised 6/30/17)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing         T.H. = Transmittal Hearing          P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Monday, July 10, 2017 • Final Plat DWG Req. 
Ord. 

• SSA-2017-01 

• SSA-2017-02 

• SSA-2017-03 

• Z-2017-07 

• Z-2017-08 

• Z-2017-09 

• Z-2017-10 

 

Tuesday, August 1, 2017   • Z-2017-06 

• Z-2017-11 

• Z-2017-12 

• Z-2017-13 

• Zoning/FLU 
Inconsistencies 

• Clustering 

• Storage Containers 

Tuesday, September 5, 2017  • SSA-2017-04 • Z-2017-04  

Tuesday, October 1, 2017     

Tuesday, November 7, 2017     

Tuesday, December 5, 2017     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current 
meeting agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 
 

** Residential Uses Ordinance – waiting on input from the County Attorney’s Office 
** Signs Ordinance – waiting on input from the BCC 
** CPA-2016-01 Extraction and Reclamation – on hold 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 07/10/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-03
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land
Use Map - SSA-2017-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioner (BCC) for
adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale
Amendment, SSA-2017-03.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant request to amend the 2030 FLU Map designation of a parcel within
Section 38, Township 5N, Range 33W, totaling 2.50 (+/-) acre, located on Pine Forest
Road, as depicted in the signed and sealed survey submitted with the application from
Agricultural (AG) to Rural Community (RC).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following



This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Future Land Use
Map of the Comprehensive Plan and distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to
interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
SSA-2017-03
Draft Ordinance



 

 

 

 

 

SSA-2017-03 



PIN E BA RRE N CH UR CH R D

SE
AL

E S
RD

MEADOWS LN

PINE

FOREST RD

ROCKAWAYCREEK RD

ALLEN RD

W HIGHW AY 4

DEER LAKE RD

GR
EE

N
V I

L L
AG

E
RD

SA NDY
HOLL OW

RD

H IGHWAY 97

F ICKLIN RD

GOBBLER RD

NOKOMIS RD

RO
CK

AW
AY

CR
EE

K 
RD

SA

NDY

HO
LL

OW RD

YOUNG RD PELT  RD

KANSAS RD
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

SSA-2017-03
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr
Agr

RR RR

RR
RR

PINE FOREST RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-03
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



AG
RC

AG
AG

RC

AG

AG
AG

RC

PINE FOREST RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-03
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

+/- 2.5 
acres

+/- 130.84 
acres



AG
RC

AG
AG

RC

AG

AG
AG

RC

PINE FOREST RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-03
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



PINE FOREST RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2017-03
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing 
Sign



Looking East across Pine Forest 
Rd from subject parcel



Looking Northeast from Pine Forest Rd



Looking Northwest from Pine Forest Rd



Looking Southwest from parcel onto 
Pine Forest Rd



May 24, 2017

To Whom it May Concern,

Re: Parcel ID 38-5N-33-3301-000-000/ 5700 Pine Forest Road,Walnut Hill, FL

My son and Iare row-crop and cattle farmers, and in efforts toexpand our production, wealong with
our wives, recently bought approximately 255 +/- acres (individual parcels, butall abutting). We
purchased this property for the sole reason of it being prime farmland. However, the property came
with a single-family residence of which we have no need for. Sothat we are following the rules and
regulations of Escambia County, we are formally requesting a Future Land Use Map Amendment, aswell
as, a Rezoning. We are requesting this so that we can properly cut out the single-family residence, and
have it meet code, sothat any future buyerwill not have anyissues regarding the zoning uses and/or

building permits for the property.

Currently, the parcel that we are asking to be changed is zoned Agriculture with a FLU designation of

Agriculture. We would like to request a Future Land Use Map Amendment change to the Rural

Community designation so that we do not have to carve out 20 acres of the prime farmland that we just

purchased for our business. The designation of RuralCommunity would be consistent with our rezoning

request of Rural Residential.

Thank you for your consideration,

Susan k. Ward

Burton H. Ward Kathryn Elizabeth H. Ward





ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT
3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505 (850) 595-3475

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION

(THIS SECTION FOR OFFICE USE ONLY):

TYPE OF REQUEST: SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDMENT
LARGE SCALE FLU AMENDMENT

Current FLU: Desired FLU: Zoning: Taken by:.
Planning Board Public Hearing, date(s):

BCC Public Hearing, proposed date(s):

Fees Paid Receipt # Date:

OWNER'S NAME AND HOME ADDRESS AS SHOWN ON PUBLIC RECORDS OF

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FL

Name: f)\X(]pY\ flp.ClH\ flhrl 1^0+^11 t\ lAlM h H•Klflr/j
Address:

5090 Arthur fro^n Koad
city: 1/vlalnut \\\ State: EL Zip Code: 325(A?

Telephone: (2$l ) 35^1 A(j>DO

Email: ^V\Vvlfld 1 £ QDQdj 1 CX)frA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

Street address:

Subdivision:

Property reference number: Section

Parcel

Size of Property (acres)

Township

Lot

.Range_

Block

FLU Page 3 of 7











































3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 

   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: June 7, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – SSA-2017-03 

and Z-2017-07 
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Small Scale Map Amendment (SSA)-2017-03 and 
Rezoning Case (Z)-2017-03, 5700 SR297 (Pine Forest Road), agenda item for the 
upcoming Planning Board meeting scheduled for July 11, 2017. Please see the below 
comments. 
 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the 
County’s Capital Improvement Program or the State of Florida’s Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT) 5-Year Work Program along Pine Forest Road within the vicinity 
of the subject parcel.  

 
Per the Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) 

Congestion Management Process Plan, Pine Forest Road is currently functioning within 
its allowable capacity for traffic volumes between the segment of SR10A (Mobile Hwy) 
and I-10. The maximum level-of-service (LOS) for the roadway segment is LOS D 
(39,800 trips/day), and currently the roadway segment is functioning at a LOS C (26,000 
trips/day) and is not expected to exceed 29,000 trips/day by Year 2024, which is still 
within the allowable LOS roadway standard. 
 

The TPO 2040 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) does include a capacity 
project along Mobile Highway from Nine Mile Road to Godwin Lane, which lies just west 
of the subject parcel, to widen to 4 lanes. The 2040 LRTP proposes Federal/State 
dollars to fund the engineering design phase ($10.4M) for this section of Mobile 
Highway within the 2026-2030 timeframe. However, no right-of-way ($17.3M) or 
construction ($39.7M) funds are proposed in the LRTP at this time. 
 
 Due to the information provided above, TTO Staff does not have any concerns 
with the proposed SSA and/or the rezoning request; however, TTO’s review hold no 
bearing on future TTO comments during the Development Review process.  
 



 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 



Comprehensive Plan Amendment  
Staff Analysis  

 
 
 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  SSA 2017-03 
Location:  5700 Pine Forest Road        
Parcel #s:  38-5N-33-3301-000-000 (Parent Parcel) 
Acreage:  2. 50 (+/-) acres 
Request:  From Agricultural (AG) to Rural Community (RC)   
Applicant:   Brett and Susan Ward, Owners  
 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board July 10, 2017 
   BCC August 3, 2017 
 
 
Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
 
The proposed amendment is for a parcel totaling 2.50 (+/-) acre, accessed from Pine Forest 
Road.  
 
The proposed small scale amendment meets the following conditions in order to be classified as 
a small scale comprehensive plan amendment:  
 
a)  The parcel is 2.50 (+/-) acres which is under the 10 acres or fewer as stated in 

163.3187(1)(a). 
b)  This amendment is the third small scale amendment for this calendar year; therefore, it will 

not exceed the maximum of 120 acres in a calendar year as stated in F.S 163.3187(1)(b). 
c) The proposed amendment is not located within a designated area of critical state concern. 
 
The applicants have requested a Future Land Use (FLU) map amendment to change the FLU 
category of a parcel totaling 2.50(+/-) acre, from Agricultural (AG) to Rural Community (RC). 
Based on the request, the FLU change along with a concurrently requested rezoning from 
Agriculture (Agr), to Rural Residential (RR), would allow for the separation of an existing 
residential unit from the primary farmland operations. 
 
Sec. 2-7.3 Comprehensive Plan future land use and text amendments.  
 

(3) Compliance review. The Planning Board shall consider a requested Comprehensive 
Plan map amendment during the noticed meeting of the board and determine any 
subsequent actions. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Board shall adopt a 
recommendation to the BCC for adoption, adoption with modification, or rejection of the 
amendment.  
a. General amendment conditions. All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan shall 
demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an amendment is 
imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only demonstrate the conditions to the 
greatest extent practicable under that requirement:  

         1. Need and benefit. There is an identified land use need particular to the scope   
         and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is clearly   



SSA 2017-03   

Page 2 of 5 

         warranted.  
        2. Professional practices. The proposed amendment applies contemporary     
        planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices to   
        provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem or   
        need.  
 
Staff Analysis: To provide protection to prime farmland and prevent the unnecessary and 
irreversible conversion of large tracks of farmland into non-agricultural uses, the RC FLU 
recognize existing residential development that serves the rural and agricultural areas of 
Escambia County. Farming is an important aspect of our community; planning principles used to 
encourage the protection of prime farmland in the County, as provided for specific allowances in 
the Comprehensive Plan and in the Land Development Code. In the Land Development Code 
(LDC), Sec. 3-2.3 Rural Residential district (RR) describe the clustering of smaller residential 
lots where needed to protect prime farmland from non-agricultural use.   

 
b. FLUM amendment conditions. In addition to the general amendment conditions, a 
future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses by Florida Statute.  

 
Land Use Impacts: 
 
Residential Impact 
 
Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) 1.3.1, the current Agriculture (AG) FLU is intended for 
routine agricultural and silvicultural related activities and very low density residential uses. Also, 
allows for commercial activity limited to those endeavors ancillary to agricultural and silvicultural 
pursuits or in support of agricultural activities such as seed, feed and food outlets, farm 
equipment and repair and veterinary services. The range of allowable uses includes agriculture, 
silviculture, residential, recreational, public and civic, limited ancillary or supportive, commercial. 
The residential maximum density is 1 du/20 acres. 
 
The proposed amendment to Rural Community (RC) is intended to recognize existing 
residential development and neighborhood serving nonresidential activity through a compact 
development pattern that serves the rural and agricultural areas of Escambia County. The range 
of allowable uses includes agriculture, silviculture, residential, recreational facilities, public and 
civic, compact traditional neighborhood supportive commercial. The residential maximum 
density is 2 du/acre  
 
Staff Analysis: The applicant is concurrently requesting a rezoning from Agr to RR. If the 
rezoning is approved, then the proposed FLU change to RC would be compatible with the 
existing surrounding area densities and intensities. The current development trend in this area 
of the County identifies the existence of rural residential development along existing roadways, 
in support of the primary agricultural development. The parcel already has a single-family 
residence and accessory structures on-site.           
 
Infrastructure Availability: 
 
FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas 
To promote the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the 
County will encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development 
densities and intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial 
and Industrial Future Land Use districts categories (except for residential development).  



SSA 2017-03   

Page 3 of 5 

 
GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that facilities and 
services needed to support development are available concurrent with the impacts of such 
development. The Concurrency Management System will be determined by the provisions of 
the LDC. 
 
Potable Water 

The applicant has the responsibility to contact the local water provider to ensure the provider 
can support the proposed use. The adopted level of service (LOS) standards for potable water 
is established in Comprehensive Plan Policy INF 4.1.7.   
 
Sanitary Sewer 
 
The adopted level of service standards for sanitary sewer established in Comprehensive Plan 
Policy INF 1.1.9 are an average of 210 gallons per residential connection per day and a peak of 
350 gallons per residential connection per day.  The policy also states that the LOS 
requirements for non-residential uses shall be based upon an equivalent residential connection 
calculated by the provider and on the size of the non-residential water meter.   
 
Solid Waste Disposal 
 
As established in Comprehensive Plan policy INF 2.1.4, the adopted LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal in the county is six pounds per capita per day.   
 
Stormwater Management 
 
INF 3.1.2 County System Improvements. Escambia County will continue its practice of 
enhancing localized and regional drainage systems to increase the LOS associated with 
development prior to current stormwater management requirements.  
 
INF 3.1.4 Stormwater Management Enforcement. Escambia County will continue 
enforcement of its stormwater management ordinance, consistent with the Capital 
Improvements Element and in cooperation with the municipalities and regulatory agencies, 
pursuant to the detailed guidance provided by Escambia County's stormwater management 
plan.  
 
INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management. Escambia County will ensure the provision of 
stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities as created by 
development or redevelopment through implementation of the Concurrency Management 
System. 
 
INF 3.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. Stormwater management LOS will be monitored 
through the provisions in the LDC design standards.  
 
INF 3.1.8 Natural Drainage Features. Existing functioning drainage features will be utilized 
whenever sufficient capacity is available within such features. Utilization of natural drainage 
features will be required when such use does not impact sensitive natural resources. The LDC 
will include land use regulations that require site-specific development plans to protect natural 



SSA 2017-03   

Page 4 of 5 

drainage features and incorporate such features into the site planning and development 
process.  
 
INF 3.1.9 Untreated Stormwater. Channeling untreated run-off directly into receiving waters 
will be prohibited. Thus, no new "direct" discharge of untreated stormwater will be permitted. 
Note: For the purposes of this plan, adequate vegetative filtration of sheet flow from pervious 
surfaces may be considered treatment. 
 
Transportation System 
 
MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities. All new private development will be required to provide safe and 
convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the LDC. 

MOB 1.1.7 Access Management. Escambia County will promote access management by 
limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences during travel, separating 
conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be eliminated, and controlling the turning 
movements to facilitate traffic flow on affected roadways.  

MOB 1.2.1 Consistency. All plans and proposals for development and redevelopment as well 
as all land use decisions will be reviewed for consistency with the FLUM. 

 
Staff Analysis: The parcel has a single-family residence on-site promoting the efficient use of 
existing public roads and infrastructure. The applicant is not proposing any other development.  
 
Impact on Wellheads, Historically Significant Sites and the Natural Environment:   
 
Wellheads: 
 
CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide comprehensive wellhead 
protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future public water supplies. The 
provisions shall establish specific wellhead protection areas and address incompatible land 
uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within those areas. 
 
Historically Significant Sites: 
 
FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance. Escambia County shall utilize all available resources of the Florida 
Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the identification of archeological and/or 
historic sites or structures within the County. The County will utilize guidance, direction and 
technical assistance received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County will utilize 
assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the University of West Florida, 
in identifying newly discovered historic or archaeological resources. The identification will 
include an analysis to determine the significance of the resource. 
 
Wetlands: 
 
CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators. Escambia County has adopted and will use the 
National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and 
Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential 
presence of wetlands or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development 
approval. The Escambia County Hydric Soils Map is attached to this ordinance as Exhibit N. 



SSA 2017-03   

Page 5 of 5 

 
Staff Analysis: Based on public records, the existing residence was built in 1975 and it’s the 
primary residential use of the new 2.5 +/- acre parcel created. The parcel appears to be located 
outside of the well-head travel time contours. The applicant did not provide a significant 
historical site review; however, it’s worth noting that the parcel in question contains existing 
residential and accessory structures. The applicant is not proposing any other development on-
site; we recommend that any new proposed development within the parcel would have to be 
reviewed for cultural resources. From a review of the available National Wetland Inventory 
maps, there appears to be no environmentally sensitive lands on the subject parcel.  Any 
future development shall be analyzed for environmental compliance with regulations prior to the 
issuance of any site plan approval. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Consistency and Relevant Policies: 
 
Rural Community Future Land Use Category: 
 
FLU 1.3.1 FLUM Rural Community (RC)  
General Description: Intended to recognize existing residential development and 
neighborhood serving nonresidential activity through a compact development pattern that 
serves the rural and agricultural areas of Escambia County.  
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed FLU change to RC is compatible with the existing surrounding 
uses and will not have a negative impact upon existing public roads, utilities and service 
infrastructures. The development trend is rural residential development along the existing 
roadways. The existing residence already makes use of available infrastructure and is 
compatible with the surrounding uses and intensities.   
 
Summary: If the rezoning application to RR is approved, then the request to assign a FLU of 
RC would be compatible with the current requirements of the Comprehensive Plan and of the 
Land Development Code. To protect the agricultural and rural character of that area in 
Escambia County, both the LDC and the Comprehensive Plan have allowances to 
accommodate single-family residences as accessory and supportive uses to the farming 
operations.  
 





 

PB 07-10-17 

Re: SSA-2017-03; Pine Forest Road 

Draft  PB1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-___ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 

PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; 5 

AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” 6 

POLICY FLU 1.1.1 TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 7 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE 8 

CATEGORY OF 2.5+/- ACRES PORTION OF A PARCEL WITHIN 9 

SECTION 38, TOWNSHIP 5N, RANGE 33W, PARCEL NUMBER 38-5N-10 

33-3301-000-000, LOCATED ON PINE FOREST ROAD, FROM 11 

AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO RURAL COMMUNITY (RC); PROVIDING 12 

FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 13 

INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 14 

DATE. 15 

 16 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County 17 

adopted its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 20 

Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, to prepare, amend and enforce 21 

comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 22 

 23 

WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 24 

forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 25 

changes (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 28 

the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  29 

 30 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 31 

Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 32 

 33 

Section 1. Purpose and Intent 34 

This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 35 

authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 36 

Florida Statutes. 37 

 38 



PB 07-10-17 

Re: SSA-2017-03; Pine Forest Road 

Draft  PB1 

Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 1 

This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Small Scale Amendment 2 

2017-03."  3 

4 

Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 5 

6 

The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 7 

Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 8 

2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all 9 

notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the 10 

following future land use change. 11 

12 

 A parcel within Section 38, Township 5N, Range 33W, parent parcel 13 

reference number 38-5N-33-3301-000-000 totaling 2.50 (+/-) acres, 14 

located on Pine Forest Road, as more particularly described by Timothy 15 

Brandon Bailey, P. L. S,  signed and sealed by Timothy Brandon Bailey in 16 

the conveyance survey dated May 22, 2017 attached as Exhibit A, from 17 

Agricultural (AG) to Rural Community (RC).  18 

19 

Section 4. Severability 20 

21 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 22 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 23 

the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 24 

25 

Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 26 

27 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 28 

Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that 29 

the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 30 

relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 31 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 32 

33 

Section 6.  Effective Date 34 

35 

Pursuant to Section 163.3187(5)(c), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 36 

effective until 31 days after adoption.  If challenged within 30 days after adoption, this 37 



PB 07-10-17 

Re: SSA-2017-03; Pine Forest Road 

Draft  PB1 

Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or 1 

the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in 2 

compliance. 3 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 4 

5 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 6 

OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 7 

8 

9 

By: _________________________________ 10 

D. B. Underhill, Chairman 11 

12 

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 13 

Clerk of the Circuit Court 14 

15 

16 

By: ___________________________  17 

Deputy Clerk 18 

19 

20 

(SEAL) 21 

22 

23 

ENACTED: 24 

25 

26 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 27 

28 



Exhibit A



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 07/10/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-01
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land
Use Map - SSA-2017-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, a Small Scale Map Amendment, SSA-2017-01, amending Part II of the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as
amended; amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map designation.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant is requesting a FLU Map amendment for a 3.25 (+/-) acre parcel, from
Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U), that would eliminate the FLU constraint of
residential development permitted only as secondary to primary commercial
development of the parcel.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommendations or comments
from that review are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Amendment of the Comprehensive Plan requires public hearing review and



Amendment of the Comprehensive Plan requires public hearing review and
recommendation by the Board prior to action by the BCC.  The proposed Ordinance is
consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in, access to, and
approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan will be filed with the Department of
State following adoption by the BCC.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Future Land Use
Map of the Comprehensive Plan and distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to
interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens.  The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
SSA-2017-01
Draft Ordinance



 

 

 

 

 

SSA-2017-01 



RABURN

MOBILEBL
UE

 A
NG

EL

GODWINBU
RN

HI
LL

TE
MP

LE

MI
DA

S

MOBILE

DON
JANEAL

MOBILE

BROW
NFIELD

PINE
FOREST SWEET

HEART

COPE

KERSEY

PINE
FOREST

PINE
FOREST

NATURE

PINE
FOREST

DUNAWAY

MOBILE

HO
ME

ST
EA

D

HOUSTON

FL
IN

TL
OC

K

TAMI

LEPLEY

CEDAR
LAKE

CO
MM

UN
ITY

BR
AD

LE
Y

VICTORY

MO
BIL

E
MERS

GL
EN

WA
Y

HO
WA

RD
DE

AN

DEVIN
NE

SH
OT

A

DE
VIN

TIPPY
REDD

KE
RS

EY

MILLVIEW

MIDAS

LO
CK

HA
RT

FL
IP 

FL
OP

DA
RR

AH

LINGER

LANGFORD

BR
AD

SH
AW

CA
RM

EN

MAYWOOD

CH
IC

AG
OSEQUOIA

HOLLYHILL

PEPPER

SL
AS

H
PIN

E

PAM

BOULDER

REVA

PA
WN

EE

SEATTLE

OT
HE

LL

TUPELO

TUCSONSAUFLEY
FIELD

MU
LD

OO
N

OAKSTREAM
PLANK

BELLVIEWBRYDON

CHRISTOPHER

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T

BAMBOO

BAREFOOT

TR
IB

UT
AR

Y

HI
AW

AT
HA

NO
KO

MI
S

MAYWOOD

SEITZ

HOLLYHILL

GERTRUDE

INDA

GW
EN

CANTER

CE
DA

R
RI

DG
E

HERTZ

CYCLE

DE
VIN

TIL
LM

AN

FL
OY

D

CHICAGO

BR
AD

LE
Y

CHAPPIE

PR
OV

ID
EN

CE

EIG
HT

 M
ILE

 C
RE

EK

INNISWOLD

PE
RT

H
HO

BA
RT

GENEVIVE

CROCUS

MEAD

KL
ON

DI
KE

PINEVIEW

TU
RK

EY BI
LE

K

CEDARBROOK

MY
ST

IC
NA

SH
VIL

LE
DA

LL
AS

KY
LE

YELLOW
ROSE

MO
NT

GO
ME

RY

SO
ND

U

FRIDINGER

ODELL

LO
UI

SV
ILL

E

GREEN
VALLEY

DE
NV

ER

PRISSEY

RE
ED

ER
S

YO
SH

IDA

TO
NT

O

WASATCH
RANGE

GERMAIN

AMOS

LU
DL

OW

HILLCREST

DUNN

PORT
ST.

JOE

BR
IDG

ET

DAHLIA

TANNEHILL

LILLIE

HO
BS

ON

SIR
E

MOBILE

SANDY

BREWER

CROWSON

BE
LL

VIE
W

PIN
ES

JA
KE

R

SCOTTS

RICKWOOD

CH
EL

LIE

MI
TC

HE
LL

PAM

BLUE
ANGEL

MANDEVILLE
MOBILE

JARADA

VIL
LE

NA
UV

E

MONCRIEF

MO
CC

AS
IN

WINDSTONE

GU
NT

ER

SHELLY

BE
LG

IU
M

MI
MO

SA

PETRA

SH
EN

AN
DO

AH

INDIANA
RESMONDO

NANDORA

GLYNQUIST

CH
AR

BA
R

GALVIN

DOMINIC

RANDEE

QUIETOAK

EA
ST

 FE
NC

E

BU
CK

LA
ND

PIN
E

FO
RE

ST

STODDARD

AMELIA

EUREKA

PINE FOREST

TREAHNA
HOGAN

LIANA

AD
DI

E
GA

NT

DANDELION

BE
LG

IU
M

PA
CK

ER

SIERRA

DA
NN

Y
WY

MA
RT

KLONDIKE

PU
RS

LE
Y

HILLCREST

BE
LL

VIE
W

PIN
ES

GODWIN

GREEN
BAY

TILLMAN
BELGIUM

LONGLEAF

MIDLAND PARK

JUNO

HUNTSVILLE

PURSELL

MOBILE

RO
BL

E L
OM

A

DU
NW

AL
T

FO
RE

ST
PIN

ES

TRYTONREGALO
FARRIS

MI
LL

VIE
W

HOLT

WASATCHRANGE

HE
LT

ON

SUNTAN

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

SSA-2017-01
LOCATION

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



BLUE ANGEL
LONGLEAF

HILLCREST

PINE
FOREST

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK

TE
MP

LE

MOBILE

GREEN
VALLEY

WASATCH RANGE

BR
ID

GE
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
PIN

E F
OR

ES
T

WASATCH RANGE
ComCom

Com

Com
ComCom

Com

Com

Com

Com

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LIHC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HDMU
HDMU

HDMU
HDMU

HDMU
HDMU

HDMU

HDMU
HDMU

HDMU HDMU

HDMU

LDMU

LDR

LDR

LDR
LDR

MDR

MDR MDR

HC/LI

Com

HC/LI

Com

HDMU
PARCELS
RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-01
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



BLUE ANGEL
LONGLEAF

HILLCREST

PINE
FOREST

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK

TE
MP

LE

MOBILE

GREEN
VALLEY

WASATCH RANGE

BR
ID

GE
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
PIN

E F
OR

ES
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T

WASATCH RANGE

MU-S

MU-U

C
PARCELS
RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-01
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



BLUE ANGEL
LONGLEAF

HILLCREST

PINE
FOREST

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK

TE
MP

LE

MOBILE

GREEN
VALLEY

WASATCH RANGE

BR
ID

GE
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
PIN

E F
OR

ES
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T

WASATCH RANGE

MU-S

MU-U

C
PARCELS
RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-01
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



PI
NE

 F
OR

ES
T 

RD

N BLUE ANGEL PKWY

WASATCH RANGE LOOP

Buffer_of_PARCELS_16
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2017-01
AERIAL

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer





Wiley C."Buddyn Page, MPA, APA
Professional Growth Management Services, LLC

5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571
Cell 850.232.9853

budpagel@att.net

Mr. Horace Jones, Director
Development Services Department
1363 Park Place Central Complex
Pensacola, Florida 32505

RE: Small Scale Future Land Use Change
From Commercial to Mixed Use-Urban MU

Parcel Number 25-lS-31-2304-000-00f
Address: 7155 North Blue Angel Parkway
Owners: Hershel and Debra H. Home

Dear Mr. Jones:

This letter together with the attached application and supporting documentation
requests Planning Board consideration to change the referenced property Future
Land Use from Commercial to Mixed Use-Urban MU-U.

If approved, the parcel will then have the same zoning and future land use
classifications as the existing apartment complex located west and adjacent to the
site. With regard to location criteria, the site is located within 1,000 feet from the
Pine Forest Road intersection, which is a major collector roadway. Owners
contemplate construction of another apartment complex.

May 15, 2017
VIA HAND DELIVERY

Please contact me if you have any questions or require anything further. Thank
you.

Sincerely yojurs,

PLANNING • ZONING • SUE SELECTION • LmGATION SUPPORT







































3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE:  June 21, 2017 

 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – SSA-2017-01 

 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Small Scale Amendment (SSA)-2017-01, Escambia County 
7155 (SR173) North Blue Angel Parkway, agenda item for the upcoming Planning 
Board meeting scheduled for July 11, 2017. Please see the below comment. 

 
• SSA-2017-01 – Upon review of regional and local transportation plans, there are 

currently no programmed improvements within the FDOT 5-Year Work Program 
for North Blue Angel Parkway in the vicinity of this application. Seeing none, TTO 
Staff has no immediate comments with the Small Scale Amendment request. 

 
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 1 
Staff Analysis 

Comprehensive Plan Small Scale Map Amendment  

Staff Analysis  
 

General Data 
Project Name:  SSA-2017-01  
Location:  7155 Blue Angel Parkway       
Parcel #:  25-1S-31-2304-000-001 
Acreage:  3.25 (+/-) acres 
Request:  From Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U)   
Agent:  Wiley C. “Buddy” Page for Hershel H. and Debra H. Horne, Owners 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board: July 10, 2017 
   BCC: August 3, 2017 
 
Summary of proposed amendment 
The small scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the county proposes to 
change the FLU category of a 3.25-acre parcel from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use 
Urban (MU-U).  The parcel is currently occupied by a single-family dwelling and 
accessed along approximately 318 feet of frontage on the south side of Blue Angel 
Parkway between Mobile Hwy. and Pine Forest Road.  A vacant commercial parcel 
adjoins the subject parcel on the west and south.  A single-family parcel and a 
commercially developed parcel adjoin the east side.  The zoning designation for the 
subject parcel is Commercial (Com).  
The existing and proposed future land use categories are described in Comprehensive 
Plan policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 

Commercial.  The current Commercial FLU is intended for professional office, retail, 
wholesale, service, and general business trade, with residential development 
permitted only if secondary to a primary commercial development.  The listed range 
of allowable uses is residential, retail and services, professional office, light 
industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic.  Commercial FLU has a maximum 
residential density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0.   
Mixed-Use Urban.  The proposed Mixed-Use Urban FLU is intended for an intense 
mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill 
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses within the 
category as a whole.  The listed range of allowed uses is residential, retail and 
services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic 
uses.  Mixed-Use Urban has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre, a 
maximum FAR of 2.0 and a minimum non-residential FAR of 0.25. 

  



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 2 
Staff Analysis 

Land Development Code FLU map amendment requirements 
Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 

Analysis: The application cover letter states that the “owners contemplate construction 

of another apartment complex,” apparently referring to the existing Village at Southern 

Oaks apartments west of but not adjoining the subject parcel.  Unlike the existing 

Commercial FLU, the proposed MU-U does not require residential development to be 

secondary to a primary commercial development.  Conversion to MU-U would eliminate 

the FLU dedication to commercial use and provide greater accommodation of 

residential uses within a mixed-use environment.  

Although the applicant provided no need-based justification for apartments, the 2016 

Rental Market Study (Shimberg Center for Housing Studies, University of Florida, for 

Florida Housing Finance Corp.) reported that more households are renting.  Florida’s 

home ownership rate fell from 71 percent in 2007 to 65 percent in 2014, and statewide 

renting is up for both lower and higher income households.  

The “Data and Analysis Response” in the application combines the subject parcel with 

an adjoining larger parcel of different ownership and the subject of a separate FLU map 

small scale amendment application.  The analysis consistently refers to “the site,”  

appearing to consider both parcels as one.  Regarding potential multi-family 

development, the analysis makes several references to a potential 150 unit apartment 

complex.  Multi-family residential is a permitted use within the existing Commercial 

zoning of the subject 3.25-acre parcel and not limited to a predominantly commercial 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 3 
Staff Analysis 

development if within the requested MU-U FLU, but otherwise is limited to 25 du/acre or 

81 total dwelling units for the parcel.  

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices 
to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem 
or need. 

Analysis:  Accepting multi-family residential use as the identified need, the proposed 

amendment applies appropriate planning principles by suggesting a replacement FLU 

that is both consistent with the proposed use and the same as most adjoining and 

surrounding property.  The application of other appropriate professional practices in 

potential multi-family development is addressed in the remaining sections of this 

analysis. 

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 

Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all four conditions established by 

Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small scale comprehensive plan 

amendment:  

(a) The subject 3.25-acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 

(b) The amendment is the first proposed small scale amendment for calendar year 2017 

and will not exceed the cumulative maximum of 120 acres in a calendar year. 

(c) The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the Comprehensive 

Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future Land Use Map for a site-

specific small scale development activity. 

(d) The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 

designated area of critical state concern. 

 

Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 

1. Housing 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 4 
Staff Analysis 

Policy HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 

Analysis:  The proposed MU-U is a suitable replacement of the existing Commercial 

future land use to accommodate the suggested residential development, and is 

consistent with the FLU of the largely residential surrounding development. 

2. Future Land Use 

OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 

Analysis:  Mixed-Use Urban, the applicable FLU for much of the land surrounding the 

subject parcel, would promote more mixed use and compact development for the 

subject parcel and be more likely to discourage urban sprawl than the current 

Commercial FLU. 

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4 Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 
residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 

Analysis:  The application includes documentation of the general adequacy of potable 

water, wastewater, and solid waste services.  The site is located along a minor arterial 

street and within 700 feet of a major arterial.  Redevelopment of the subject parcel from 

the existing single-family dwelling to multi-family would promote the efficient use of this 

available infrastructure. 

GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 
Potable Water.   



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 5 
Staff Analysis 

Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUC has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the 
ECUA wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant 
has obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

Solid Waste Disposal.   
Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis:  The Emerald Coast Utilities Authority provides potable water distribution, 

sanitary sewer collection and treatment, and solid waste collection and disposal for the 

subject parcel.  The application includes a letter from the ECUA stating that those 

services are currently available at the parcel for an unspecified demand. 

Stormwater Management. 

Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management. Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 6 
Staff Analysis 

such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities. Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 

Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7 Access Management.  Escambia County will promote access 
management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences 
during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be 
eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on 
affected roadways.  

Analysis: Any redevelopment of the subject parcel is required to comply with the current 

stormwater management, onsite parking, site access, and other applicable development 

standards of the LDC.  County compliance review of any redevelopment plan would be 

required prior to plan approval.    



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 7 
Staff Analysis 

4. Protected Resources   
Wellheads.   

Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current 
and future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 

Analysis: The subject parcel is approximately 1.5 miles south southeast from the 

nearest public potable water wellhead, outside of any wellhead protection area. 

Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance. Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in 
the identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the 
County.  The County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance 
received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 

Analysis:  The applicant provided no confirmation of the presence or absence of 

historically significant sites or documentation of a referenced request made to the 

Archaeology Department of the University of West Florida. 

Wetlands and Habitat. 
Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators. Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 

Urban Forest. 
Policy CON 1.6.4 Urban Forest Management. Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  

Analysis: There are no indications from the available National Wetland Inventory map 

that wetlands are on the subject parcel.  There are indications from public record photos 

that the subject property likely contains protected trees.  Any future development will be 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-01   Page 8 
Staff Analysis 

analyzed for compliance with applicable environmental regulations prior to the issuance 

of development plan approval. 





 

PB 07-10-17   
Re: SSA-2017-01; Blue Angel Pkwy.  Page 1 

Draft PB1 
  

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-___ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 

PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; 5 

AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” 6 

POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 7 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE 8 

CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 1S, 9 

RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 25-1S-31-2304-000-001, TOTALING  10 

3.25 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON BLUE ANGEL PARKWAY, FROM 11 

COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED-USE URBAN (MU-U); PROVIDING FOR 12 

A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 13 

INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 14 

DATE. 15 

 16 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County 17 

adopted its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 20 

Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, to prepare, amend and enforce 21 

comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 22 

 23 

WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 24 

forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 25 

changes (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 28 

the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  29 

 30 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 31 

Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 32 

 33 

Section 1. Purpose and Intent 34 

This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 35 

authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 36 

Florida Statutes. 37 

 38 



 

PB 07-10-17   
Re: SSA-2017-01; Blue Angel Pkwy.  Page 2 

Draft PB1 
  

Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 1 

This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Small Scale Amendment 2 

2017-01."   3 

 4 

Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 5 

The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 6 

Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 7 

2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all 8 

notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the 9 

following future land use change. 10 

 11 

 A parcel within Section 25, Township 1S, Range 31W, parcel number 12 

25-1S-31-2304-000-001, totaling 3.25 (+/-) acres, located on Blue Angel 13 

Parkway, as more particularly described in the boundary survey by 14 

Northwest Florida Engineering & Surveying, Inc., signed and sealed by 15 

Russell T. Weaver, August 27, 2001, attached as Exhibit A, changing from 16 

Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).  17 

 18 

Section 4. Severability 19 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 20 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 21 

the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 22 

 23 

Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 24 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 25 

Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that 26 

the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 27 

relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 28 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 29 

 30 

Section 6.  Effective Date 31 

Pursuant to Section 163.3187(5)(c), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 32 

effective until 31 days after adoption.  If challenged within 30 days after adoption, this 33 

Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or 34 

the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in  35 

compliance. 36 

 37 

 38 



 

PB 07-10-17   
Re: SSA-2017-01; Blue Angel Pkwy.  Page 3 

Draft PB1 
  

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 1 

 2 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 3 

      OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 4 

 5 

 6 

      By: ______________________________ 7 

       D. B. Underhill, Chairman 8 

 9 
             10 

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 11 

Clerk of the Circuit Court 12 

 13 

 14 

By: ___________________________ 15 

         Deputy Clerk  16 

 17 

 18 

(SEAL) 19 

 20 

 21 

ENACTED: 22 

       23 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 24 

 25 



Exhibit A



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. C.           
Meeting Date: 07/10/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-02
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land
Use Map - SSA-2017-02

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, a Small Scale Map Amendment, SSA 2017-02, amending Part II of the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as
amended; amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map designation.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant is requesting a FLU Map amendment for a 8.59 (+/-) acre parcel, from
Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U), that would eliminate the FLU constraint of
residential development permitted only as secondary to primary commercial
development of the parcel.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommendations or comments
from that review are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Amendment of the Comprehensive Plan requires Public hearing review and



Amendment of the Comprehensive Plan requires Public hearing review and
recommendation by the Board prior to action by the BCC.  The proposed Ordinance is
consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in, access to, and
approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan will be filed with the Department of
State following adoption by the BCC.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Future Land Use
Map of the Comprehensive Plan and distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to
interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
SSA-2017-02
Draft Ordinance



 

 

 

 

 

SSA-2017-02 



RABURN

INTERSTATE

BL
UE

 A
NG

EL

GODWIN

DU
RA

ND

BU
RN

HI
LL

MOBILE

TE
MP

LE

MI
DA

S

MOBILE

DON
JANEAL

MOBILE

BROW
NFIELD

PINE
FOREST SWEETHEART

COPE

KERSEY

PINE
FOREST

PINE
FOREST

PINE
FOREST

NATURE

DUNAWAY

MOBILE

HO
ME

ST
EA

D

HOUSTON

FL
IN

TL
OC

K

MEMPHIS

SH
AD

OW
GR

OV
E

CEDAR
LAKE

CO
MM

UN
ITY

BR
AD

LE
Y

MO
BIL

E

CLIFF
BROOK

MERS

GL
EN

WA
Y

HO
WA

RD
DE

AN

DEVIN

DE
VIN

TIPPY
REDD

KE
RS

EY
MILLVIEW

LO
CK

HA
RT

FL
IP 

FL
OP

LEPLEY

DA
RR

AH

LINGER

LANGFORD

BR
AD

SH
AW

CA
RM

EN

MAYWOOD

CH
IC

AG
O

SEQUOIA

TAMI

HOLLYHILL

PEPPER

SL
AS

H
PIN

E

FRENCH

TUCSON

PAM

BOULDER

REVA

PA
WN

EE

SEATTLE

OT
HE

LL

TUPELO

TUCSON

MU
LD

OO
N

OAKSTREAM

WHITEPINES

PLANK

BELLVIEWBRYDON

CHRISTOPHER

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T

BAMBOO

BAREFOOT

TR
IB

UT
AR

Y

HI
AW

AT
HA

NO
KO

MI
S

MAYWOOD

SEITZ

CEDARLAKE

HOLLYHILL

GERTRUDE

INDA

GW
EN

CANTER

CE
DA

R
RI

DG
E

HERTZ

DE
VIN

TIL
LM

AN

FL
OY

D

CHICAGO

BR
AD

LE
Y

CHAPPIE

EIG
HT

 M
ILE

 C
RE

EK

INNISWOLD

PE
RT

H
HO

BA
RT

CROCUS

MEAD

PR
OS

PE
CT

CEDAR
LA

KE

KL
ON

DI
KE

PINEVIEW

GENEVIVE

BI
LE

K

CEDARBROOK

MY
ST

IC
NA

SH
VIL

LE
DA

LL
AS

NE
SH

OT
A

YELLOW
ROSE

MO
NT

GO
ME

RY

SO
ND

U

FRIDINGER

TU
RK

EY

ODELL

LO
UI

SV
ILL

E

GREEN
VALLEY

SAUFLEY
FIELD

DE
NV

ER

PRISSEY

RE
ED

ER
S

YO
SH

IDA

TO
NT

O

WASATCH
RANGE

AMOS

HILLCREST

MOBILE

DUNN

WINDSTONE

PORT
ST.

JOE

BR
IDG

ET

DAHLIA

TANNEHILL

LILLIE

HO
BS

ON

SIR
E

SANDY

BREWER

CROWSON

BE
LL

VIE
W

PIN
ES

JA
KE

R

SCOTTS

RICKWOOD

CH
EL

LIE

MI
TC

HE
LL

PAM

BLUE
ANGEL

MANDEVILLE
MOBILE

JARADA

VIL
LE

NA
UV

E

MONCRIEF

MO
CC

AS
IN

GU
NT

ER

SHELLY

BE
LG

IU
M

MI
MO

SA

PETRA

SH
EN

AN
DO

AH

INDIANA
RESMONDO

NANDORA

GLYNQUIST

GALVIN

DOMINIC

CH
AR

BA
R

RANDEE

EA
ST

 FE
NC

E

BU
CK

LA
ND

PIN
E

FO
RE

ST

STODDARD

AMELIA

EUREKA

PIN
E

FO
RE

ST

TREAHNA
HOGAN

LIANA

AD
DI

E
GA

NT

DANDELION

BE
LG

IU
M

PA
CK

ER

SIERRA

DA
NN

Y
WY

MA
RT

PU
RS

LE
Y

LONGLEAF

HILLCREST

BE
LL

VIE
W

PIN
ES

GODWIN

GREEN
BAY

TILLMAN
BELGIUM

KLONDIKE

MIDLAND PARK

JUNO

HUNTSVILLE

PURSELL

MOBILE

RO
BL

E L
OM

A

DU
NW

AL
T

FO
RE

ST
PIN

ES

TRYTON

REGALO

FARRIS

MI
LL

VIE
W

HOLT

WASATCHRANGE

HE
LT

ON

SUNTAN

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

SSA-2017-02
LOCATION

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



BLUE ANGEL
LONGLEAF

PINE
FOREST

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK

HILLCREST

GREEN
VALLEY

WASATCH RANGE

MOBILE

BR
ID

GE
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
PIN

E F
OR

ES
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T

WASATCH RANGE
ComCom

Com

Com
ComCom

Com
Com

Com

Com

Com

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LIHC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU
HDMU

HDMU

HDMU
HDMU

HDMU

HDMU HDMU

LDMU

LDR

LDR

LDR

LDR

MDR

MDR
MDR

HC/LI

Com

HC/LI

Com

HDMU
PARCELS
RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-02
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



BLUE ANGEL
LONGLEAF

PINE
FOREST

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK

HILLCREST

GREEN
VALLEY

WASATCH RANGE

MOBILE

BR
ID

GE
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
PIN

E F
OR

ES
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
WASATCH RANGE

MU-S

MU-U

C

PARCELS
RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-02
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



BLUE ANGEL
LONGLEAF

PINE
FOREST

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK

HILLCREST

GREEN
VALLEY

WASATCH RANGE

MOBILE

BR
ID

GE
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
PIN

E F
OR

ES
T

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T
WASATCH RANGE

MU-S

MU-U

C

PARCELS
RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 400 800 1,200

Ft

SSA-2017-02
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



BLUE ANGEL

WASATCH RANGE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK

WA
SA

TC
H 

RA
NG

E

PARCELS
RAILROAD
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2017-02
AERIAL

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer





Wiley C."Buddy" Page, MPA, APA
Professional Growth Management Services, LLC

5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571
Cell 850.232.9853

budpagel@att.net

May 15, 2017
VIA HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Horace Jones, Director
Development Services Department
1363 Park Place Central Complex
Pensacola, Florida 32505

RE: Small Scale Future Land Use Change
From Commercial to Mixed Use-Urban MU-U

Parcel Number 25-1S-31-2304-000-005

Address: 7000 North Blue Angel Parkway
Owners: Kings Way Church & Christian Center

Dear Mr. Jones:

This letter together with the attached application and supporting documentation
requests Planning Board consideration to change the referenced property Future
Land Use from Commercial to Mixed Use-Urban MU-U.

If approved, the parcel will then have the same zoning and future land use
classifications as the existing apartment complex located west and adjacent to the
site. With regard to location criteria, the site is located within 1,000 feet from the
Pine Forest Road intersection, which is a major collector roadway. Owners
contemplate construction of another apartment complex.

Please contact me if you have any questions or require anything further. Thank
you.

PLANNING • ZONING • SITE SELECTION • LITIGATION SUPPORT







































3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE:  June 21, 2017 

 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – SSA-2017-02 

 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Small Scale Amendment (SSA)-2017-02, Escambia County 
7000 (SR173) North Blue Angel Parkway, agenda item for the upcoming Planning 
Board meeting scheduled for July 11, 2017. Please see the below comment. 

 
• SSA-2017-02 – Upon review of regional and local transportation plans, there are 

currently no programmed improvements within the FDOT 5-Year Work Program 
for North Blue Angel Parkway in the vicinity of this application. Seeing none, TTO 
Staff has no immediate comments with the Small Scale Amendment request. 

 
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 1 
Staff Analysis 

Comprehensive Plan Small Scale Map Amendment  

Staff Analysis  
 

General Data 
Project Name:  SSA-2017-02  
Location:  7000 Blue Angel Parkway       
Parcel #:  25-1S-31-2304-000-005 
Acreage:  8.59 (+/-) acres 
Request:  From Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U)   
Agent:  Wiley C. “Buddy” Page for King’s Way Church & Christian Center, 

Inc., Owner 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board: July 10, 2017 
   BCC: August 3, 2017 
 
Summary of proposed amendment 
The small scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the county proposes to 
change the FLU category of an 8.59-acre parcel from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use 
Urban (MU-U).  The currently vacant parcel can be accessed along approximately 420 
feet of frontage on the south side of Blue Angel Parkway between Mobile Hwy. and Pine 
Forest Road.  An apartment complex (Village at Southern Oaks) adjoins the subject 
parcel on the west and a single-family subdivision (Logan Place) adjoins on the south.  
A single-family parcel and a commercially developed parcel adjoin the east side.  The 
zoning designation for the subject parcel is Commercial (Com).  
The existing and proposed future land use categories are described in Comprehensive 
Plan policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 

Commercial.  The current Commercial FLU is intended for professional office, retail, 
wholesale, service, and general business trade, with residential development 
permitted only if secondary to a primary commercial development.  The listed range 
of allowable uses is residential, retail and services, professional office, light 
industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic.  Commercial FLU has a maximum 
residential density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0.   
Mixed-Use Urban.  The proposed Mixed-Use Urban FLU is intended for an intense 
mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill 
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses within the 
category as a whole.  The listed range of allowed uses is residential, retail and 
services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic 
uses.  Mixed-Use Urban has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre, a 
maximum FAR of 2.0 and a minimum non-residential FAR of 0.25. 

  



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 2 
Staff Analysis 

Land Development Code FLU map amendment requirements 
Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 

Analysis: The application cover letter states that the “owners contemplate construction 

of another apartment complex,” apparently referring to the existing Village at Southern 

Oaks apartments on the west side of the subject parcel.  Unlike the existing Commercial 

FLU, the proposed MU-U does not require residential development to be secondary to a 

primary commercial development.  Conversion to MU-U would eliminate the FLU 

dedication to commercial use and provide greater accommodation of residential uses 

within a mixed-use environment.  

Although the applicant provided no need-based justification for apartments, the 2016 

Rental Market Study (Shimberg Center for Housing Studies, University of Florida, for 

Florida Housing Finance Corp.) reported that more households are renting.  Florida’s 

home ownership rate fell from 71 percent in 2007 to 65 percent in 2014, and statewide 

renting is up for both lower and higher income households.  

The “Data and Analysis Response” in the application combines the subject parcel with 

an adjoining smaller parcel of different ownership and the subject of a separate FLUM 

small scale amendment application.  The analysis consistently refers to “the site,”  

appearing to consider both parcels as one.  Regarding potential multi-family 

development, the analysis makes several references to a potential 150 unit apartment 

complex.  Multi-family residential is a permitted use within the existing Commercial 

zoning of the subject 8.59-acre parcel and not limited to a predominantly commercial 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 3 
Staff Analysis 

development if within the requested MU-U FLU, but otherwise is limited to 25 du/acre or 

215 total dwelling units for the parcel.  

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices 
to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem 
or need. 

Analysis:  Accepting multi-family residential use as the identified need, the proposed 

amendment applies appropriate planning principles by suggesting a replacement FLU 

that is both consistent with the proposed use and the same as most adjoining and 

surrounding property.  The application of other appropriate professional practices in 

potential multi-family development is addressed in the remaining sections of this 

analysis. 

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 

Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all four conditions established by 

Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small scale comprehensive plan 

amendment:  

(a) The subject 8.59-acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 

(b) The amendment is the second proposed small scale amendment for calendar year 

2017 and will not exceed the cumulative maximum of 120 acres in a calendar year. 

(c) The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the Comprehensive 

Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future Land Use Map for a site-

specific small scale development activity. 

(d) The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 

designated area of critical state concern. 

 

Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 

1. Housing 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 4 
Staff Analysis 

Policy HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 

Analysis:  The proposed MU-U is a suitable replacement of the existing Commercial 

future land use to accommodate the suggested residential development, and is 

consistent with the FLU of the largely residential surrounding development. 

2. Future Land Use 

OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 

Analysis:  Mixed-Use Urban, the applicable FLU for much of the land surrounding the 

subject parcel, would promote more mixed use and compact development for the 

subject parcel and be more likely to discourage urban sprawl than the current 

Commercial FLU. 

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4 Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 
residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 

Analysis:  The application includes documentation of the general adequacy of potable 

water, wastewater, and solid waste services.  The site is located along a minor arterial 

street and within 1000 feet of a major arterial.  Redevelopment of the subject parcel 

from the existing single-family dwelling to multi-family would promote the efficient use of 

this available infrastructure. 

GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 
Potable Water.   



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 5 
Staff Analysis 

Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUC has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the 
ECUA wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant 
has obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

Solid Waste Disposal.   
Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis:  The Emerald Coast Utilities Authority provides potable water distribution, 

sanitary sewer collection and treatment, and solid waste collection and disposal for the 

subject parcel.  The application includes a letter from the ECUA stating that those 

services are currently available at the parcel for an unspecified demand. 

Stormwater Management. 

Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 6 
Staff Analysis 

such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 

Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7 Access Management.  Escambia County will promote access 
management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences 
during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be 
eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on 
affected roadways.  

Analysis: Any redevelopment of the subject parcel is required to comply with the current 

stormwater management, onsite parking, site access, and other applicable development 

standards of the LDC.  County compliance review of any redevelopment plan would be 

required prior to plan approval.    



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 7 
Staff Analysis 

4. Protected Resources   
Wellheads.   

Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current 
and future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 

Analysis: The subject parcel is approximately 1.5 miles south southeast from the 

nearest public potable water wellhead, outside of any wellhead protection area. 

Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance. Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in 
the identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the 
County.  The County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance 
received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 

Analysis:  The applicant provided no confirmation of the presence or absence of 

historically significant sites or documentation of a referenced request made to the 

Archaeology Department of the University of West Florida. 

Wetlands and Habitat. 
Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators. Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 

Urban Forest. 

Policy CON 1.6.4 Urban Forest Management. Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  

Analysis: There are no indications from the available National Wetland Inventory map 

that wetlands are on the subject parcel.  There are indications from public record photos 

that the subject property likely contains protected trees.  Any future development will be 



PB 7-10-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-02 Page 8 
Staff Analysis 

analyzed for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations prior to the 

issuance of development plan approval. 





 

PB 07-10-17   
Re: SSA-2017-02; Blue Angel Pkwy.  Page 1 

Draft PB1 
  

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-___ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 

PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; 5 

AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” 6 

POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 7 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE 8 

CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 1S, 9 

RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 25-1S-31-2304-000-005, TOTALING  10 

8.59 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON BLUE ANGEL PARKWAY, FROM 11 

COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED-USE URBAN (MU-U); PROVIDING FOR 12 

A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 13 

INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 14 

DATE. 15 

 16 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County 17 

adopted its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 20 

Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, to prepare, amend and enforce 21 

comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 22 

 23 

WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 24 

forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 25 

changes (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 28 

the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  29 

 30 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 31 

Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 32 

 33 

Section 1. Purpose and Intent 34 

This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 35 

authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 36 

Florida Statutes. 37 

 38 



 

PB 07-10-17   
Re: SSA-2017-02; Blue Angel Pkwy.  Page 2 

Draft PB1 
  

Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 1 

This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Small Scale Amendment 2 

2017-02."   3 

 4 

Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 5 

The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 6 

Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 7 

2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all 8 

notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the 9 

following future land use change. 10 

 11 

 A parcel within Section 25, Township 1S, Range 31W, parcel number 12 

25-1S-31-2304-000-005, totaling 8.59 (+/-) acres, located on Blue Angel 13 

Parkway, as more particularly described in the boundary survey by Merrill 14 

Parker Shaw, Inc., signed and sealed by E. Wayne Parker, February 1, 15 

2013, attached as Exhibit A, changing from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use 16 

Urban (MU-U).  17 

 18 

Section 4. Severability 19 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 20 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 21 

the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 22 

 23 

Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 24 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 25 

Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that 26 

the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 27 

relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 28 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 29 

 30 

Section 6.  Effective Date 31 

Pursuant to Section 163.3187(5)(c), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 32 

effective until 31 days after adoption.  If challenged within 30 days after adoption, this 33 

Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or 34 

the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in  35 

compliance. 36 

 37 

 38 



 

PB 07-10-17   
Re: SSA-2017-02; Blue Angel Pkwy.  Page 3 

Draft PB1 
  

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 1 

 2 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 3 

      OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 4 

 5 

 6 

      By: ______________________________ 7 

       D. B. Underhill, Chairman 8 

 9 
             10 

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 11 

Clerk of the Circuit Court 12 

 13 

 14 

By: ___________________________ 15 

         Deputy Clerk  16 

 17 

 18 

(SEAL) 19 

 20 

 21 

ENACTED: 22 

       23 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 24 

 25 



Exhibit A



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. D.           
Meeting Date: 07/10/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter

2, Section 2-5.7, Final Plats
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Section
2-5.7, Final Plats

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Section 2-5.7,
Final Plats.

BACKGROUND:
The County reviews and approves commercial and residential subdivisions that are
forwarded to the Property Appraiser's office to update the parent parcel. As technology
advances this has been a daunting task due to the current file format they receive.  A
digital file in the most up to date format will allow mapping section staff at the Property
Appraiser's office to simply insert the lines and parcel shapes into their parcel layer and
assign the attributes to geometric features.  Providing a vectorized data file will decrease
the time it takes to update the parcel layers.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen



The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-_______

AN  ORDINANCE  OF  ESCAMBIA  COUNTY,  FLORIDA,  AMENDING
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS
AMENDED;  AMENDING  CHAPTER  2,  DEVELOPMENT  AND
COMPLIANCE REVIEW;  ARTICLE 5,  SUBDIVISION,  SECTION 2-5.7,
FINAL  PLATS;  TO  REQUIRE  SUBMISSION  OF  CERTAIN  DIGITAL
FILES;  PROVIDING  FOR  SEVERABILITY;  PROVIDING  FOR
INCLUSION  IN  THE  CODE;  AND  PROVIDING  FOR  AN  EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and  

WHEREAS, section 125.01,  Florida Statutes,  authorizes the Board of  County
Commissioners to establish regulations for development and compliance review specific
to final plats in the unincorporated areas of the County pursuant to general law; and

 
WHEREAS, through the Land Development Code, the Escambia County Board

of County Commissioners desires to preserve the county as a desirable community in
which to live, vacation and do business; and

WHEREAS, requiring certain digital files will streamline the platting process and
is necessary for the most basic enjoyment of residential property rights; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that amendments to require submission of digital
maps with final plats are necessary to effectively regulate the subdivision process and
are beneficial to the public health, safety, and general welfare of the County.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA:

Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 2, Development and Compliance Review, Article 5,
Subdivision,  Section  2-5.7,  is  hereby  amended  as  follows  (words  underlined are
additions and words stricken are deletions):

Sec.2-5.7 Final plats

(a) General.  Final plat approval is required to map the proposed subdivision of land 
in compliance with the platting requirements of Florida Statutes, so that, upon its 
recording, all land shown on the plat that is a part of the subdivision is identified 
and may be conveyed by reference to the plat, including the dedication of rights-
of-way and easements. The approval of a final plat allows the recording of the 
plat in the public records when its content and form are consistent with state and 

July PB Page 1
Re: Final Plat digital files
Draft 2A



county requirements and with any applicable conditions of its approved 
preliminary plat and infrastructure construction plan.

(b) Application for the final plat. Applicants seeking final plat approval from the 
Board of County Commissioners shall submit their request to the Office of the 
Planning Official. Applications shall be submitted within two years of the date that 
the preliminary plat and construction plans were approved unless an extension is 
granted as provided in Chapter 2.

(c) Warranty agreement. Applicants seeking final plat approval shall warrant that all 
public subdivision improvements are built in accordance with approved 
construction plans and free from design, construction, material, and 
workmanship defects for a period of two years from the date that the final plat is 
recorded. The applicant shall make the warranty on a form of warranty 
agreement published by the County.

(d) Incidental deficiencies.  At the discretion of the County Engineer, final plats may 
be submitted to the Board of County Commissioners for approval with minor 
defects to public subdivision improvements that are determined to be incidental 
deficiencies. Incidental deficiencies are primarily cosmetic in nature and do not 
undermine the function or stability of the public subdivision improvements. 
Incidental deficiencies include but are not limited to the following:

(1) Cracked curbing or other cracked concrete that is not destroyed or displaced 
but still functions for the intended use.

(2) Minor ponding of water on asphalt, provided base failure is not evident.
(3) Minor settling of asphalt areas, provided base failure is not evident.
(4) Minor defects in stormwater pipe, provided installation is in accordance with 

the manufacturers’ requirements.
(5) Ponds recharging at a slow rate, but still meeting regulatory requirements.
(6) Seed or sod that has failed to establish sufficient ground cover for 

final stabilization and erosion control.
Incomplete installation of street signs and pavement markings shall not be 
considered incidental deficiencies. If incidental deficiencies exist when the final 
plat is submitted for approval by the Board of County Commissioners, the 
applicant shall also include financial security with the executed warranty 
agreement.

(e) Acceptable forms of financial security.  Financial security shall be in the form of 
a cash deposit or irrevocable letter of credit. The cash deposit shall be held in an 
interest-bearing account with withdrawals conditions upon approval of the County 
Administrator. Interest on cash deposits shall be retained by the applicant only if 
the applicant satisfactorily corrects all incidental deficiencies guaranteed by the 
deposit.

(f) Amount of financial security.  If financial security is required, the applicant shall
provide an estimate from the engineer of record for the cost to remove and 
replace all public subdivision improvements with incidental deficiencies. The 
amount of the financial security to be provided by the applicant shall be 150% of 
the cost estimate or $7,500, whichever is greater.

July PB Page 2
Re: Final Plat digital files
Draft 2A



(g) Warranty inspection.  The County shall inspect all warranted public subdivision 
improvements prior to the expiration of the two year warranty period and provide 
to the applicant a list of deficiencies noted during the inspection. The applicant 
shall remain responsible for correcting any deficiencies noted in the inspection 
even if the corrective action is not completed until after the expiration of the two 
year warranty period.

(h) Approval process Checklists provided by the appropriate department will give 
the applicant quick and ready access to the requirements of this article.

(i) Recreational amenities.  For proposed subdivisions that are designed to utilize 
significant recreational amenities, including but not limited to a golf course, 
swimming pool, club house or tennis courts, the area designated for those uses 
shall be included in the final plat.

(j) Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure.  For any residential plat submitted to the
Board on or after June 1, 2017, the applicant shall provide a complete listing of the
infrastructure expected  to be constructed within the platted area along with the
location of such infrastructure and a disclosure of the person or entity responsible
for maintenance and ownership of such infrastructure. The format of this disclosure
shall substantially mirror that provided in section 86-166 of the Escambia County
Code of Ordinances.

(k) Digital Files.    With the submittal of the final plat mylar for BCC approval, a digital   
file of the plat in a DWG or DXF format shall be provided to the County in the 
following datum and projection:

(1) Datum: NAD83 (2011) or most current realization as defined and maintained by   
the National Geodetic Survey (NGS)

(2) Projection Zone: Florida North (State Plane – US Survey Foot Definition)  

(3) Projection Type: Lambert Conformal Coni  c  

Section 2. Severability.

If  any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 

It  is  the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that  the provisions of  this
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections,
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered
and  the  word  “ordinance”  may  be  changed  to  “section,”  “chapter,”  or  such  other
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

July PB Page 3
Re: Final Plat digital files
Draft 2A



Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State.

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By: ______________________________

    D. B. Underhill, Chairman

ATTEST:   PAM CHILDERS                                          

  Clerk of the Circuit Court

By: __________________________   

       Deputy Clerk 

(SEAL)

ENACTED:

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

July PB Page 4
Re: Final Plat digital files
Draft 2A


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft June 6, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att3_Six Month Outlook
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-03
	Att1_SSA-2017-03
	SSA-2017-03
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Proposed FLU
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments
	Staff Analysis

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-01
	Att1_SSA-2017-01
	SSA-2017-01
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Proposed FLU
	Aerial Map
	Notice of Public Hearing Sign
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Warranty Deed
	ECUA Letter
	Data and Analysis
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments
	Staff Analysis

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-02
	Att1_SSA-2017-02
	SSA-2017-02
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Notice of Public Hearing Sign
	Letter of Request
	Application
	ECUA Letter
	Data and Analysis
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments
	Staff Analysis

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Section 2-5.7, Final Plats
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Sec.2-5.7 Final plats


